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VSE Corporation and Subsidiaries

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains statements that, to the extent they are not recitations of historical fact, constitute "forward looking statements" under
federal securities laws. All such statements are intended to be subject to the safe harbor protection provided by applicable securities laws.
For discussions identifying some important factors that could cause actual VSE Corporation ("VSE," the "Company," "us," "our," or
"we") results to differ materially from those anticipated in the forward looking statements contained in this report, see VSE's discussions
captioned "Business," "Risk Factors," "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" contained in VSE's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2015 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") on March 3, 2016 ("2015 Form 10-K").

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward looking statements, which reflect management's analysis only as of
the date hereof.  We undertake no obligation to revise publicly these forward looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that
arise after the date hereof.  Readers should carefully review the risk factors described in our 2015 Form 10-K and in the reports and other
documents the Company files from time to time with the SEC, including this and other Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and any Current
Reports on Form 8-K that we file with the SEC subsequent to our 2015 Form 10-K.
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PART I.  Financial Information

Item 1.    Financial Statements

VSE Corporation and Subsidiaries

Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands except share and per share amounts)

 
 

March 31,
  

December
31,  

  2016   2015  
Assets     
Current assets:     
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 587  $ 740 
Receivables, net   76,878   78,471 
Inventories   113,633   109,123 
Other current assets   13,184   9,138 
          Total current assets   204,282   197,472 
         
Property and equipment, net   63,796   64,308 
Intangible assets, net   139,023   143,043 
Goodwill   198,545   198,545 
Other assets   15,274   13,986 
          Total assets  $ 620,920  $ 617,354 
         
Liabilities and Stockholders' equity         
Current liabilities:         
Current portion of long-term debt  $ 18,210  $ 17,272 
Accounts payable   51,445   40,084 
Current portion of earn-out obligation   8,015   9,678 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   27,159   29,067 
Dividends payable   594   591 
          Total current liabilities   105,423   96,692 
         
Long-term debt, less current portion   201,675   215,243 
Deferred compensation   13,070   11,169 
Long-term lease obligations, less current portion   22,914   23,251 
Earn-out obligation, less current portion   10,445   10,166 
Deferred tax liabilities   31,099   31,524 
          Total liabilities   384,626   388,045 
         
Commitments and contingencies         
         
Stockholders' equity:         
Common stock, par value $0.05 per share, authorized 15,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding
5,399,342 and 5,375,532 respectively   270   269 
Additional paid-in capital   23,136   21,637 
Retained earnings   213,436   207,478 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (548)   (75)
    Total stockholders' equity   236,294   229,309 
    Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 620,920  $ 617,354 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VSE Corporation and Subsidiaries

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Income
(in thousands except share and per share amounts)

 
 

For the three months ended
March 31,  

  2016   2015  
     
Revenues:     
    Products  $ 85,271  $ 69,721 
    Services   58,365   51,070 
        Total revenues   143,636   120,791 
         
Costs and operating expenses:         
    Products   69,290   56,183 
    Services   56,204   49,124 
    Selling, general and administrative expenses   1,381   1,159 
    Amortization of intangible assets   4,020   3,641 
        Total costs and operating expenses   130,895   110,107 
         
Operating income   12,741   10,684 
         
Interest expense, net   2,497   2,143 
         
Income before income taxes   10,244   8,541 
         
Provision for income taxes   3,692   3,321 
         
Net income  $ 6,552  $ 5,220 
         
Basic earnings per share:  $ 1.22  $ 0.97 
         
Basic weighted average shares outstanding   5,389,184   5,369,695 
         
Diluted earnings per share:  $ 1.21  $ 0.97 
         
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding   5,403,097   5,380,217 
         
Dividends declared per share  $ 0.11  $ 0.10 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VSE Corporation and Subsidiaries

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(in thousands except share and per share amounts)

 
 

For the three months ended
March 31,  

  2016   2015  
     
Net income  $ 6,552  $ 5,220 
         
        Change in fair value of interest rate swap agreements   (473)   (301)
         
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax   (473)   (301)
         
Comprehensive income  $ 6,079  $ 4,919 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VSE Corporation and Subsidiaries

Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

  
For the three months ended

March 31,  
  2016   2015  
Cash flows from operating activities:     
  Net income  $ 6,552  $ 5,220 
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating
    activities:         
      Depreciation and amortization   6,241   6,101 
      Deferred taxes   (129)   (1,313)
      Stock-based compensation   1,028   788 
      Earn-out obligation adjustment   (1,384)   310 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of impact of acquisition:         
      Receivables, net   1,593   (9,195)
      Inventories   (4,510)   (1,298)
      Other current assets and noncurrent assets   (5,330)   (741)
      Accounts payable and deferred compensation   13,097   (1,246)
      Accrued expenses  and other current liabilities   (1,429)   1,074 
      Long-term lease obligations   (337)   (280)
         
       Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities   15,392   (580)
         
Cash flows from investing activities:         
  Purchases of property and equipment   (1,428)   (3,384)

  Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment
  6   207 

  Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired   -    (188,771)
         
       Net cash used in investing activities   (1,422)   (191,948)
         
Cash flows from financing activities:         
   Borrowings on loan agreement   49,699   300,471 
   Repayments on loan agreement   (62,468)   (104,349)
   Payment of debt financing costs   -    (2,280)
   Payments on capital lease obligations   (264)   (233)
   Payments of taxes for equity transactions   (499)   (341)
   Dividends paid   (591)   (535)
         
       Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities   (14,123)   192,733 
         
         
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents   (153)   205 
  Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period   740   263 
  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 587  $ 468 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

(1) Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation

Our accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles for interim financial information and the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.  Accordingly,
they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial
statements.  In our opinion, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have
been included.  Operating results for the three months ended March 31, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be
expected for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2016.  For further information refer to the consolidated financial statements and
footnotes thereto included in our 2015 Form 10-K.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires us to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Significant estimates affecting the financial statements include accruals for contract disallowance reserves, recoverability
of goodwill and intangible assets and earn-out obligations.

Reclassification

Effective January 1, 2016, we elected to present amortization of purchased intangible assets as a separate line item and rename "Contract
costs" to "Costs and operating expenses" on our Consolidated Statements of Income.  For consistency, these amortization expenses have
been reclassified in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the three months ended March 31, 2015 to conform to the current period
presentation.  As a result, amortization expenses previously reflected as contract costs of $3.2 million in "Products" and $486 thousand in
"Services" were reclassified to the "Amortization of intangible assets" line item within cost and operating expenses.  These
reclassifications have no effect on our reported financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.

(2) Acquisitions

Ultra Seating

On December 31, 2015, we acquired 100% of the voting and equity interest in Ultra Seating Company ("Ultra Seating") for an initial
purchase price of approximately $3.8 million (subject to adjustment). Ultra Seating provides specialized seating for heavy duty and light
duty commercial trucks. Ultra Seating is included in our Supply Chain Management Group and complements our Wheeler Bros., Inc.
subsidiary by expanding our current supply chain markets and establishing a distribution channel to better serve mission critical vehicle
fleets. We are in the process of finalizing our valuation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, including the amortization period
for the intangible assets. Based on preliminary estimates, we recorded approximately $1.9 million of goodwill and approximately $1.5
million of intangible assets primarily related to customer relationships and a trade name.

The pro forma effects assuming the acquisition had occurred as of January 1, 2015 were not material to the Company's total revenues,
income from continuing operations and earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2015.

VSE Aviation

On January 28, 2015, we acquired 100% of the voting and equity interests of four businesses that specialize in maintenance, repair and
overhaul ("MRO") services and parts supply for general aviation jet aircraft engines and engine accessories. The acquired businesses
include Air Parts & Supply Co., Kansas Aviation of Independence, L.L.C., Prime Turbines LLC (including both U.S. and German-based
operations), and CT Aerospace LLC (collectively, "Aviation Acquisition"). These four businesses are operating as a combined group
managed by our wholly owned subsidiary VSE Aviation, Inc. ("VAI"). The Aviation Acquisition provided diversification by adding
service offerings and broadening our client base.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

We may be required under an earn-out obligation to make additional purchase price payments of up to $40 million if the acquired
businesses meet certain financial targets during the first two post-closing years. Included in earn-out obligation on the March 31, 2016
balance sheet is an earn-out obligation of approximately $10.4 million, net of the current portion of approximately $8 million classified in
current portion of earn-out obligation, which represents our best estimate of the present value of such earn-out obligation for both post-
closing years. Interest expense and subsequent changes in the fair value of the earn-out obligations are recognized in earnings in the
period of change through settlement.

The following VSE unaudited consolidated pro forma results are prepared as if the Aviation Acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2014.
This information is for comparative purposes only and does not necessarily reflect the results that would have occurred or may occur in
the future. The following unaudited consolidated pro forma results of operations are as follows (in thousands except per share amounts):

 
 

Three months ended March
31,  

  2016   2015  
Revenue  $ 143,636  $ 128,196 
Income from continuing operations  $ 6,552  $ 5,383 
Basic earnings per share  $ 1.22  $ 1.00 
Diluted earnings per share  $ 1.21  $ 1.00 

(3)  Debt

We have a loan agreement with a group of banks that was amended in January 2015 to fund our Aviation Acquisition, provide working
capital for our continuing operations, and retire our existing debt. The loan agreement, which expires January 2020, is comprised of a term
loan facility and a revolving loan facility. The revolving loan facility provides for revolving loans and letters of credit. Financing costs
associated with the inception of the amended loan agreement of approximately $2.7 million were capitalized and are being amortized over
the five-year life of the loan.

Our required term loan payments after March 31, 2016 are $14.1 million in 2016, $21.6 million in 2017, $28.1 million in 2018, $30
million in 2019, and $36.2 million in 2020. The amount of term loan borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2016 was $130 million.

The maximum amount of credit available to us under the loan agreement for revolving loans and letters of credit as of March 31, 2016
was $150 million. We may borrow and repay the revolving loan borrowings as our cash flows require or permit. We pay an unused
commitment fee and fees on letters of credit that are issued. We had approximately $92 million in revolving loan amounts outstanding and
no letters of credit outstanding as of March 31, 2016. We had approximately $101 million in revolving loan amounts outstanding and no
letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2015.

Under the loan agreement we may elect to increase the maximum availability of the term loan facility, the revolving loan facility, or both
facilities up to an aggregate additional amount of $75 million.

Total bank loan borrowed funds outstanding as of March 31, 2016, including term loan borrowings and revolving loan borrowings, were
approximately $222 million. Total bank loan borrowed funds outstanding as of December 31, 2015 were approximately $235 million. The
fair value of outstanding debt as of March 31, 2016 under our bank loan facilities approximates its carrying value using Level 2 inputs
based on market data on companies with a corporate rating similar to ours that have recently priced credit facilities.

We pay interest on the term loan borrowings and revolving loan borrowings at LIBOR plus a base margin or at a base rate (typically the
prime rate) plus a base margin. As of March 31, 2016, the LIBOR base margin was 2.5% and the base rate base margin was 1.25%. The
base margins increase or decrease in increments as our Total Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio increases or decreases.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

The loan agreement requires us to have interest rate hedges on a portion of the outstanding term loan for the first three years of the
agreement. We executed interest rate swap agreements in February 2015 that complied with the agreement. The amount of swapped debt
outstanding as of March 31, 2016 was $100 million. After taking into account the impact of interest rate swap agreements, as of March
31, 2016, interest rates on portions of our outstanding debt ranged from 2.93% to 4.75%, and the effective interest rate on our aggregate
outstanding debt was 3.4%.

Interest expense incurred on bank loan borrowings and interest rate hedges was approximately $2.0 million and $1.7 million for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

The loan agreement contains collateral requirements to secure our borrowings and other loan agreement obligations, restrictive covenants,
a limit on annual dividends, and other affirmative and negative covenants, conditions, and limitations. Restrictive covenants include a
maximum Total Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio, which decreases over time, and a minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. We were in
compliance with required ratios and other terms and conditions at March 31, 2016.

(4) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") has been computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during each period. Shares issued during the period are weighted for the portion of the period that they were outstanding. Our
calculation of diluted earnings per common share includes the dilutive effects for an assumed vesting of restricted stock awards.

 
 

Three months ended March
31,  

  2016   2015  
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding   5,389,184   5,369,695 
Effect of dilutive restricted stock awards   13,913   10,522 
         
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding   5,403,097   5,380,217 

(5) Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

As of March 31, 2016, we had one uncompleted bonded project and the aggregate bonded amount on this project was approximately $3
million. Our bonded project is the subject of claims and disputes involving the subcontractors associated with the project. We expect this
project to be completed in 2016.

Contingencies

We are one of the defendants in a multiple plaintiff wrongful death action in Hawaii related to a fireworks explosion that occurred in April
2011 at a facility operated by a subcontractor, that resulted in the death of five of its employees. The litigation is expected to proceed to
trial in 2017. While the results of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not anticipate that this litigation will have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations or financial position.

In March 2013, a lawsuit, Anchorage v. Integrated Concepts and Research Corporation, et al. , was filed in the Superior Court for the
State of Alaska at Anchorage by the Municipality of Anchorage, Alaska against our wholly owned subsidiary Integrated Concepts and
Research Corporation ("ICRC") and two former subcontractors of ICRC (the "Anchorage Lawsuit").  With respect to ICRC, the plaintiff
asserts, among other things, breach of contract, professional negligence and negligence in respect of work and services ICRC rendered
under the Port of Anchorage Intermodal Expansion Contract with the Maritime Administration, a federal agency with the United States
Department of Transportation. ICRC
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

did not have a contract with the Municipality of Anchorage. In April 2013, ICRC removed the case to the United States District Court for
the District of Alaska. ICRC's contract with the Maritime Administration expired on May 31, 2012. The litigation is expected to proceed
to trial in 2017. Currently, we cannot predict whether the Anchorage Lawsuit will have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations or financial position.

On or about August 21, 2015, a lawsuit, The Charter Oak Fire Insurance Company, The Travelers Indemnity Company of Connecticut
and Travelers Property Casualty Company of America v. Integrated Concepts and Research Corporation, VSE Corporation and
Municipality of Anchorage, was filed in the United States District Court for the District of Alaska.  The plaintiff insurance companies are
seeking, among other things, (a) a declaration by the court that there is no defense or indemnity coverage available to ICRC and VSE for
the Anchorage Lawsuit under the insurance policies issued by the plaintiffs and (b) reimbursement of defense fees and costs incurred by
the plaintiffs in the defense of uncovered claims in respect of the Anchorage Lawsuit.

On or about February 27, 2015, a lawsuit, Heritage Disposal and Storage v. VSE Corporation , was filed in the United States District
Court for the District of Nebraska. The litigation subsequently was transferred to the Eastern District of Virginia on November 9, 2015.
The lawsuit asserts, among other things, breach of contract for services rendered related to the storage and manipulation of fireworks. The
services relate to a prime contract that VSE maintains with the U.S. Bureau of Alcohol Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives. The complaint
alleges that VSE has not paid Heritage the full charge for services rendered.  The litigation is expected to proceed to trial in the summer of
2016. Currently, we cannot predict whether this litigation will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial
position.

In addition to the above-referenced litigations, we have, in the normal course of business, certain claims against us and against other
parties and we may be subject to various governmental investigations.  In our opinion, the resolution of these litigations, claims and
investigations will not have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flows or financial position. However, the results of
any legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, therefore, the amount of loss, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.

(6) Business Segments and Customer Information

Business Segments

Management of our business operations is conducted under four reportable operating segments:

Supply Chain Management Group – Our Supply Chain Management Group supplies vehicle parts primarily through a Managed
Inventory Program ("MIP") and direct sales to the United States Postal Service ("USPS") and to other customers.

Aviation Group  - Our Aviation Group provides MRO services, parts supply and distribution, and supply chain solutions for general
aviation jet aircraft engines and engine accessories.

Federal Services Group - Our Federal Services Group provides engineering, industrial, logistics, foreign military sales, and legacy
equipment sustainment services to the United States Department of Defense ("DoD") and other government agencies.

IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group  – Our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group provides technical and consulting
services primarily to various DoD and civilian government agencies.

These segments operate under separate management teams and financial information is produced for each segment.  The entities within
the IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group reportable segment meet the aggregation of operating segments criteria as defined by
the accounting standard for segment reporting.  We evaluate segment performance based on consolidated revenues and operating income.
Net sales of our business segments exclude intersegment sales as these activities are eliminated in consolidation.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

Our segment information for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (in thousands):

 
 

Three months ended March
31,  

  2016   2015  
Revenues:     
  Supply Chain Management Group  $ 51,143  $ 46,242 
  Aviation Group   33,546   22,764 
  Federal Services Group   47,715   37,792 
  IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group   11,232   13,993 
    Total revenues  $ 143,636  $ 120,791 
         
Operating income:         
  Supply Chain Management Group  $ 9,028  $ 8,306 
  Aviation Group   3,289   2,113 
  Federal Services Group   389   (267)
  IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group   888   1,215 
  Corporate/unallocated expenses   (853)   (683)
   Operating income  $ 12,741  $ 10,684 

Customer Information

Our revenue by customer is as follows (dollars in thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,  
Customer  2016   %   2015   %  
U. S. Postal Service  $ 46,297   32.2  $ 44,180   36.6 
                 
U.S. Navy   29,891   20.8   21,397   17.7 
U.S. Army   22,210   15.5   19,171   15.9 
U.S. Air Force   981   0.7   790   0.6 
Total-DoD   53,082   37.0   41,358   34.2 
                 
Commercial Aviation   33,546   23.3   22,764   18.9 
Other Commercial   2,283   1.6   1,207   1.0 
Total-Commercial   35,829   24.9   23,971   19.9 
                 
Department of Energy   2,903   2.0   4,444   3.7 
Social Security Administration   2,587   1.8   2,450   2.0 
Other Government   2,938   2.1   4,388   3.6 
Total-Other Civilian Agencies   8,428   5.9   11,282   9.3 
                 
Total  $ 143,636   100.0  $ 120,791   100.0 
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

 (7) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

There were no changes in goodwill for the three months ended March 31, 2016. Goodwill by operating segment is as follows (in
thousands):

 

 
Supply Chain
Management   

IT, Energy
and

Management
Consulting   Aviation   Total  

 Balance as of December 31, 2015  $ 63,113  $ 30,883  $ 104,549  $ 198,545 
                 
 Balance as of March 31, 2016  $ 63,113  $ 30,883  $ 104,549  $ 198,545 

Intangible assets consist of the value of contract-related assets, acquired technologies and trade names. Amortization expense was
approximately $4 million and $3.6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Intangible assets were comprised of the following (in thousands):

 

 Cost   
Accumulated
Amortization   

Accumulated
Impairment

Loss   

Net
Intangible

Assets  
March 31, 2016         
Contract and customer-related  $ 173,084  $ (49,911)  $ (1,025)  $ 122,148 
Acquired technologies   12,400   (5,432)   -    6,968 
Trade names – amortizable   16,730   (6,823)   -    9,907 
    Total  $ 202,214  $ (62,166)  $ (1,025)  $ 139,023 
                 
December 31, 2015                 
Contract and customer-related  $ 173,084  $ (46,611)  $ (1,025)  $ 125,448 
Acquired technologies   12,400   (5,151)   -    7,249 
Trade names   16,730   (6,384)   -    10,346 
    Total  $ 202,214  $ (58,146)  $ (1,025)  $ 143,043 

(8) Fair Value Measurements

The accounting standard for fair value measurements defines fair value, and establishes a market-based framework or hierarchy for
measuring fair value.  The standard is applicable whenever assets and liabilities are measured at fair value.

The fair value hierarchy established in the standard prioritizes the inputs used in valuation techniques into three levels as follows:

Level 1–Observable inputs–quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

Level 2–Observable inputs-other than the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities–includes quoted prices for
similar instruments, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and amounts derived from valuation models
where all significant inputs are observable in active markets; and

Level 3–Unobservable inputs–includes amounts derived from valuation models where one or more significant inputs are unobservable
and require us to develop relevant assumptions.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

 The following table summarizes the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 and the level they fall within the fair value hierarchy (in thousands):

Amounts Recorded at Fair Value
 Financial Statement

Classification  
Fair Value
Hierarchy  

Fair Value March
31, 2016  

Fair Value
December 31, 2015

Non-COLI assets held in Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan

 
Other assets

 
Level 1

 
$273

 
$264

Interest rate swaps  Accrued expenses  Level 2  $892 $123
Earn-out obligation-current  Current portion of earn-

out obligation
 

Level 3
 

$8,015
 

$9,678
Earn-out obligation-long-term  Earn-out obligation  Level 3  $10,445 $10,166

Changes in the fair value of the Non-COLI assets held in the deferred supplemental compensation plan, as well as changes in the related
deferred compensation obligation, are recorded as selling, general and administrative expenses.

We account for our interest rate swap agreements under the provisions of ASC 815, and have determined that our swap agreements
qualify as highly effective cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the fair value of the swap agreements, which is a liability of approximately
$892 thousand at March 31, 2016 and $123 thousand at December 31, 2015, has been reported in accrued expenses. The offset, net of an
income tax effect of approximately $344 thousand and $48 thousand is included in accumulated other comprehensive loss as of March 31,
2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively. The amounts paid and received on the swap agreements are recorded in interest expense in
the period during which the related floating-rate interest is incurred. We determine the fair value of the swap agreements based on a
valuation model using primarily observable market data inputs.

We utilized a probability-weighted discounted cash flow method to determine the fair value of our Aviation Acquisition earn-out
obligation. Probabilities were applied to each potential pay-out scenario and the resulting values were discounted using a rate that
considered our weighted average cost of capital, as well as a specific risk premium associated with the riskiness of the earn out itself, the
related projections, and the overall business. Significant unobservable inputs used to value the contingent consideration included projected
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization and the discount rate.  If significant increases or decreases in the inputs
occurred in isolation, the result could be a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.

The fair value of the earn-out obligation decreased $1.4 million for the three months ended March 31, 2016 (see Note  2, Acquisitions, for
further discussion of the Aviation Acquisition earn-out obligation).

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of the earn-out obligation measured at fair value on a
recurring basis that used significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

  
Current
portion   

Long-term
portion   Total  

Balance as of December 31, 2015  $ 9,678  $ 10,166  $ 19,844 
Fair value adjustment included in earnings   (1,663)   279   (1,384)
Balance as of March 31, 2016  $ 8,015  $ 10,445  $ 18,460 

(9) Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 36.0% and 38.9% for the three months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  Income tax expense
during interim periods is based on our estimated annual effective income tax rate plus any discrete items that are recorded in the period
in which they occur. Our tax rate is affected by discrete items that may occur in any given year, but may not be consistent from year to
year. The lower effective tax rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 primarily results from a 2.3 percentage points decrease due to
fair value changes of $1.4 million to the earn-out obligation and certain benefits associated with the Aviation Acquisition. The higher
effective tax rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 is primarily due to approximately $900 thousand of transaction costs that were
not deductible for tax purposes, which increased our effective tax rate in 2015.
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VSE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2016

(10) Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2016-02,
Leases (Topic 842) Leases: Amendments to the FASB  Accounting Standards Codifications, to increase transparency and comparability
among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. The ASU will become effective for us in January 2019. Early adoption of the ASU is permitted. We currently are
assessing the impact that this standard will have on our consolidated financial statements.
 
In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2015-17,
Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, which amends the current requirement for organizations to present deferred tax assets and
liabilities as current and noncurrent in a classified balance sheet.  Organizations will now be required to classify all deferred tax assets and
liabilities as noncurrent.  The ASU will become effective for us in January 2017; however, early adoption is permitted.  The ASU can be
applied either prospectively to all deferred tax liabilities and assets or retrospectively to all periods presented.  We adopted ASU 2015-17
on January 1, 2016 and retrospectively applied this amended accounting guidance to our deferred tax liabilities and assets for all periods
presented.  The impact of this change in accounting principle on balances previously reported as of December 31, 2015 was a
reclassification of our net current deferred tax assets of approximately $ 3.6 million to net long-term deferred tax liabilities.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03,  Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs. Under the new standard, debt
issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability are required to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the
carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The guidance in ASU 2015-03 is effective for the fiscal year, and
interim periods within that fiscal year, beginning after December 15, 2015. We adopted the provisions of ASU 2015-03 January 1, 2016
and prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. As of December 31, 2015, approximately
$285 thousand of debt issuance costs was reclassified in the consolidated balance sheet from other current assets to current portion of
long-term debt and approximately $882 thousand was reclassified from other assets to long-term debt, less current portion. The adoption
of ASU 2015-03 did not impact our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which outlines a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition
guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The ASU is based on the principle that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for the goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and assets recognized
from costs incurred to fulfill a contract. The effective date of the ASU was recently deferred to the interim and annual periods beginning
on or after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted as of the original effective date–interim and annual periods beginning on or
after December 15, 2016. We currently are assessing the impact that this standard will have on our consolidated financial statements.
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Item 2.    Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Executive Overview

We are a diversified services company that assists our clients in sustaining, extending the service life and improving the performance of
their transportation, equipment and other assets and systems. We provide sustainment services for legacy systems and equipment and
professional and technical services to the United States Government (the "government"), including the United States Department of
Defense ("DoD"), the United States Postal Service ("USPS"), federal civilian agencies, commercial customers and to other customers.
Our largest customers are the USPS and DoD. Our operations include supply chain management solutions and parts supply for vehicle
fleets; maintenance, repair, and overhaul ("MRO") services and parts supply for aviation clients; vehicle and equipment maintenance and
refurbishment; logistics; engineering; energy and environmental services; IT and health care IT solutions; and consulting services.

Organization and Segments

Our operations are conducted within four reportable segments aligned with our management groups: 1) Supply Chain Management; 2)
Aviation; 3) Federal Services; and 4) IT, Energy and Management Consulting.

Supply Chain Management Group – Our Supply Chain Management Group provides sourcing, acquisition, scheduling, transportation,
shipping, logistics, data management, and other services to assist our clients with supply chain management efforts. This group consists of
our wholly owned subsidiary Wheeler Bros., Inc. ("WBI"). The primary revenue source for this group is WBI's USPS Managed Inventory
Program ("MIP") that supplies vehicle parts and mission critical supply chain support for the USPS truck fleet. Other current work efforts
include managed inventory services and parts sales to support commercial client truck fleets, parts sales to DoD, and other projects to
support the USPS.

Aviation Group – Our Aviation Group provides MRO services, parts supply and distribution, and supply chain solutions for general
aviation jet aircraft engines and engine accessories. This group consists of our four aviation businesses acquired in January 2015. These
businesses have a diversified client base serving corporate and private aircraft owners, regional airlines, aviation manufacturers, other
aviation MRO providers, cargo transporters, and agricultural clients.

Federal Services Group - Our Federal Services Group provides foreign military sales services, refurbishment services to extend and
enhance the life of existing vehicles and equipment, fleet-wide ship and aircraft support, aircraft sustainment and maintenance, and other
technical, management, engineering, logistics, maintenance, configuration management, prototyping, technology, and field support
services to the U.S. Navy and Marine Corps, U.S. Army and Army Reserve, U.S. Air Force, and other customers. Significant work efforts
for this group include assistance to the U.S. Navy in executing its Foreign Military Sales ("FMS") Program for surface ships sold, leased
or granted to foreign countries, our U. S. Army Reserve vehicle refurbishment program, various vehicle and equipment maintenance and
sustainment programs for U. S. Army commands, our Ft. Benning Logistics Support Services Program supporting base operations and
logistics at Fort Benning, Georgia, and various task orders under the U.S. Air Force Contract Field Teams ("CFT") Program.

IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group – Our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group provides technical and
consulting services primarily to various DoD and federal civilian agencies, including the United States Departments of Energy, Homeland
Security, Commerce, Treasury, and Interior; the Social Security Administration; the National Institutes of Health; customers in the
military health system; and other government agencies and commercial clients. This group consists of our wholly owned subsidiaries
Energetics Incorporated ("Energetics") and Akimeka, LLC ("Akimeka"). Energetics provides technical, policy, business, and management
support in areas of energy modernization, clean and efficient energy, climate change mitigation, infrastructure protection, and
measurement technology. Akimeka offers solutions in fields that include medical logistics, medical command and control, e-health,
information assurance, public safety, enterprise architecture development, business continuity, program and portfolio management,
network IT services, cloud managed services, systems design and integration, quality assurance services, and product and process
improvement services.
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Concentration of Revenues   
(dollars in thousands)   
  For the three months ended March 31,  
  2016     2015    
Source of Revenue  Revenues   %   Revenues   %  
USPS MIP  $ 45,357   32  $ 42,946   36 
FMS Program   24,826   17   16,019   13 
Other   73,453   51   61,826   51 
  Total revenues  $ 143,636   100  $ 120,791   100 

Management Outlook

Our first quarter financial results have shown improvements in revenue, operating income, and net income on a year over year basis, and
we believe that 2016 is shaping up to be a good year. Our newer businesses, which include supply chain management solutions to support
ground transportation clients and MRO and parts supply and distribution services to support air transportation clients; and our traditional
businesses, which include contracted services to sustain and improve the performance of transportation, equipment, and other assets and
systems primarily for DoD and other federal government clients; are both expected to play a key role in this success. We believe we have
a well-balanced business enterprise serving a diversified set of sustainment services clients that is poised for success and growth in the
current and future years.

The primary source of revenue for our Supply Chain Management Group has been our vehicle parts supply and inventory management
support for the USPS delivery vehicle fleet, which has demonstrated year over year growth in 2016 and is expected to remain a significant
part our business base in years to come. Sales of vehicle parts to DoD and supply chain and inventory management support for
commercial vehicle fleets are also growing. We continue to make progress toward on-boarding new commercial vehicle fleet clients, and
we bolstered our access to commercial markets with our acquisition of Ultra Seating Company at the end of 2015.

The USPS is a key client for which our mission critical supply chain support should continue to be essential in sustaining its aging fleet as
this client embarks on a lengthy transition to a new replacement fleet. We believe that our years of service and knowledge of this client's
needs strategically position us to participate on industry teams in the prospective competition to provide the next generation USPS
delivery vehicles. Regardless of the outcome and without any guaranty, we anticipate servicing this eventual replacement fleet in the same
manner we serve the existing fleet.

Several events in 2015 provided a positive revenue trend as we entered 2016, including the startup of our Fort Benning Logistics
Readiness Center contract in mid-2015, increased contract funding in the second half of 2015, and notice in December 2015 that
government authorization to transfer two frigates to Taiwan under our FMS Program was finalized. In March 2016, we were informed that
a protest was denied that affirmed the award to us of work for maintenance, repair, overhaul, modification and upgrade of military
vehicles and other equipment for the Red River Army Depot that we estimate will employ over 1,100 VSE and supporting subcontractor
employees beginning in May 2016. We have achieved revenue growth on a year over year basis in our Federal Services Group and
believe that these events position us well for 2016. We expect to build on this momentum through the remainder of the year and
anticipate further revenue increases.

We have developed strong international business relationships through our work with foreign client countries, and we are directly
marketing our services to international clients.

Our Aviation Group has been a part of our company for over a year and has added to our overall operating base. This group has provided
us with a wide range of new clients, competencies and key industry relationships that offer potential synergies as we seek to extend these
service offerings to our traditional U.S. and international military client base. Our Aviation Group is a valuable part of our strategy to
expand our markets for sustainment services while diversifying our revenue base and strengthening growth potential.

Bookings and Funded Backlog

Revenues for federal government contract work performed by our Federal Services and IT, Energy and Management Consulting groups
depend on contract funding ("bookings"), and bookings generally occur when contract funding documentation is received. Funded
contract backlog is an indicator of potential future revenue for these groups. While bookings and funded contract backlog generally result
in revenue, we may occasionally have funded contract backlog that expires or is de-obligated upon contract completion and does not
generate revenue.
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Bookings for our Supply Chain Management and Aviation groups occur at the time of sale. Accordingly, these groups do not generally
have funded contract backlog and backlog is not an indicator of their potential future revenues. Due to the nature of revenues generated
by our Supply Chain Management and Aviation groups, we include only our Federal Services and IT, Energy and Management
Consulting groups in our disclosure relative to bookings and funded contract backlog.

A summary of our bookings and revenues for our Federal Services and IT, Energy and Management Consulting Groups for the three
months ended March 31, 2016 and 2015, and funded contract backlog for these groups as of March 31, 2016 and 2015 was as follows:
  (in millions)  
  2016   2015  
 Bookings  $ 51  $ 45 
 Revenues  $ 59  $ 52 
 Funded Contract Backlog  $ 229  $ 185 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of recently announced accounting standards, including the expected dates of adoption and estimated effects, if any, on
our consolidated financial statements, see Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements  in Note 10 of the Notes to Unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
which require us to make estimates and assumptions. Please refer to our 2015 Form 10-K for a full discussion of our critical accounting
policies.

Revenue by Contract Type

Federal government contract work is performed by our Federal Services and IT, Energy and Management Consulting groups under three
general government contract types. Revenues of our Supply Chain Management and Aviation groups are generated under ordering or
sales agreements, and this revenue is not classified by government contract type. Our revenues are classified as follows (dollars in
thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,  
Contract Type  2016   %   2015   %  
Fixed-price  $ 15,568   11  $ 20,181   17 
Cost-type   35,156   24   19,697   16 
Time and materials   8,223   6   11,907   10 
Total Federal Services and IT, Energy and Management Consulting

revenues   58,947   41   51,785   43 
Supply Chain Management and Aviation revenues   84,689   59   69,006   57 
Total revenues  $ 143,636   100  $ 120,791   100 

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is subject to a review for impairment at least annually. We perform an annual review of goodwill for impairment during the
fourth quarter and whenever events or other changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable. The
results of our impairment analysis performed in the fourth quarter of 2015 indicated that the fair value of our Akimeka reporting unit
within our IT, Energy, and Management Consulting Group exceeded its carrying value by approximately 9% at that time. If, however,
there is deterioration of Akimeka's projected cash flows or negative changes in other related market factors, Akimeka may be at risk of a
future goodwill impairment. We believe that Akimeka's financial performance for the first quarter of 2016 did not indicate any events or
other circumstances that would require a change in our impairment analysis performed during the fourth quarter of 2015. The carrying
value of our Akimeka reporting unit as of March 31, 2016 included goodwill of approximately $29.8 million.
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As of March 31, 2016, we have no intangible assets with indefinite lives and we had an aggregate of approximately $199 million of
goodwill associated with our acquisitions.

Results of Operations

Our results of operations are as follows (dollars in thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,     
  2016   2015   Change   %  
Revenues  $ 143,636  $ 120,791  $ 22,845   19 
Costs and operating expenses   130,895   110,107   20,788   19 
Operating income   12,741   10,684   2,057   19 
Interest expense, net   2,497   2,143   354   17 
Income before income taxes   10,244   8,541   1,703   20 
Provision for income taxes   3,692   3,321   371   11 
Net income  $ 6,552  $ 5,220  $ 1,332   26 

Our revenues increased approximately $23 million or 19%, for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same period of 2015.
Revenues from our Supply Chain Management and Federal Services groups increased and the inclusion of our Aviation Group in our
operating results for a full quarter provided increased revenues in 2016. Revenues from our IT, Energy and Management Consulting
Group declined compared to the same period of 2015.

Costs and operating expenses consist primarily of cost of inventory and delivery of our products sold, direct costs including labor,
material, and supplies used in the performance of our contract work, and indirect costs associated with our direct contract costs. These
costs will generally increase or decrease in conjunction with our level of products sold or contract work performed.

Our costs and operating expenses increased approximately $21 million or 19% for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same
period of 2015. Costs and operating expenses from our Supply Chain Management and Federal Services Groups increased and the
inclusion of our Aviation Group in our operating results for a full quarter increased these costs in 2016. Costs and operating expenses from
our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group decreased compared to the same period of 2015.

Our operating income increased approximately $2.1 million or 19% for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same period of 2015.
Operating income from our Supply Chain Management Group increased and our Federal Services Group had operating income as
compared to an operating loss in the prior year. The inclusion of our Aviation Group in our operating results for a full quarter provided
increased operating income in 2016. Operating income from our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group decreased compared to
the same period of 2015.

Changes in revenues, costs and operating expenses, and income are further discussed in the summaries of our segment results that follow.

Interest expense increased approximately $354 thousand for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same period of 2015, due
primarily to an increase in our average level of bank borrowing in 2016. Interest expense also includes interest associated with capitalized
construction costs related to our executive and administrative headquarters facility lease. The amount of interest expense associated with
this capital lease in the first quarter of 2016 was approximately $394 thousand, as compared to $406 thousand for the same period of
2015.

Our effective tax rate was 36.0% for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to 38.9% for the same period of 2015. Income tax expense
during interim periods is based on our estimated annual effective income tax rate plus any discrete items that are recorded in the period in
which they occur. Our tax rate is affected by discrete items that may occur in any given year, but may not be consistent from year to year.
The lower effective tax rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 primarily results from a 2.3 percentage points decrease due to fair value
changes of $1.4 million to the earn-out obligation and certain benefits associated with the Aviation Acquisition. The higher effective tax
rate for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 is primarily due to approximately $900 thousand of transaction costs that were not deductible
for tax purposes, which increased our effective tax rate in 2015.
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Supply Chain Management Group Results

The results of operations for our Supply Chain Management Group are as follows (dollars in thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,  
  2016   2015   Change   %  
Revenues  $ 51,143  $ 46,242  $ 4,901   11 
Costs and operating expenses   42,115   37,936   4,179   11 
Operating income  $ 9,028  $ 8,306  $ 722     
Profit percentage   17.7%  18.0%        

Revenues for our Supply Chain Management Group increased approximately $4.9 million or 11% for the first quarter of 2016, as
compared to the same period of 2015. The revenue increase resulted primarily from an increase in WBI's USPS MIP revenues of
approximately $2.4 million and an increase in other revenues, including sales to the government and to commercial fleet customers, of
approximately $2.5 million. Costs and operating expenses increased by approximately $4.2 million or 11%, primarily due to the increase
in revenues. Costs and operating expenses for 2015 included approximately $310 thousand for an increase to the accrued earn-out
obligation associated with our acquisition of WBI.

Operating income increased by approximately $722 thousand or 9%, primarily due to the increase in revenues. Operating income for 2015
was reduced by approximately $310 thousand due to the increase in the earn-out obligation mentioned above.

Aviation Group Results

The results of operations for our Aviation Group are as follows (dollars in thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,  
  2016   2015   Change   %  
Revenues  $ 33,546  $ 22,764  $ 10,782   47 
Costs and operating expenses   30,257   20,651   9,606   47 
Operating income  $ 3,289  $ 2,113  $ 1,176     

Profit percentage   9.8%  9.3%        

Our Aviation Group began operations upon the acquisition of our aviation businesses on January 28, 2015; therefore, the results for our
Aviation Group include a full three months for 2016 and approximately two months for 2015. Accordingly, year over year comparisons
for this group may not be meaningful. Costs and operating expenses for 2016 include a reduction in cost of approximately $1.4 million for
a valuation adjustment to the accrued earn-out obligation associated with the 2015 acquisition of our aviation businesses, and a non-
recurring increase in expense of approximately $300 thousand related to a settlement agreement.

Federal Services Group Results

The results of operations for our Federal Services Group are as follows (dollars in thousands):
 
  Three months ended March 31,  
  2016   2015   Change   %  
Revenues  $ 47,715  $ 37,792  $ 9,923   26 
Costs and operating expenses   47,326   38,059   9,267   24 
Operating income/(loss)  $ 389  $ (267)  $ 656     
Profit percentage   0.8%  (0.7%)        
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Revenues for our Federal Services Group increased approximately $9.9 million or 26%, and costs and operating expenses increased
approximately $9.3 million or 24% for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same period of 2015. Significant items affecting our
first quarter revenue on a year to year comparative basis include increased revenues of approximately $9 million on our FMS Program,
increased revenues of approximately $5 million due to the start of our Ft. Benning Logistics Support Services Program subsequent to the
first quarter of 2015, a reduction in revenues of approximately $1 million for our Army Reserve vehicle refurbishment work, and a net
aggregate reduction in other work of approximately $3 million. The increase in costs and operating expenses is attributable to the
increased level of work associated with our revenue increase.

This group had operating income of approximately $389 thousand for the first quarter of 2016 as compared to an operating loss of
approximately $267 thousand for the first quarter of 2015. The change in operating income resulted primarily from the increase in
revenues and to an improved balance in facility and infrastructure costs that support the group's operations. Legal and settlement costs
reduced our operating income by approximately $542 thousand for the first quarter of 2016 and approximately $158 thousand for the first
quarter of 2015.

 IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group Results

The results of operations for our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group are as follows (dollars in thousands):

  Three months ended March 31,  
  2016   2015   Change   %  
Revenues  $ 11,232  $ 13,993  $ (2,761)   (20)
Costs and operating expenses   10,344   12,778   (2,434)   (19)
Operating income  $ 888  $ 1,215  $ (327)     
Profit percentage   7.9%  8.7%        

Revenues for our IT, Energy and Management Consulting Group decreased approximately $2.8 million or 20%, and costs and operating
expenses decreased approximately $2.4 million or 19% for the first quarter of 2016, as compared to the same period of 2015. The revenue
and costs and operating expenses decreases resulted primarily from a decline in services ordered by clients, contract expirations, and a loss
of work performed by this group on expiring contracts for which the follow-on work was awarded to small businesses on set-aside
contracts.

Operating income decreased by approximately $327 thousand or 27%, primarily due to the decrease in revenue.

Financial Condition

There has been no material adverse change in our financial condition in the first quarter of 2016. Changes to asset and liability accounts
were due primarily to our earnings, our level of business activity, the timing of inventory purchases, contract delivery schedules,
subcontractor and vendor payments required to perform our contract work, and the timing of associated billings to and collections from
our customers.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents decreased approximately $153 thousand during the first quarter of 2016.

Cash provided by operating activities was approximately $15.4 million in the first quarter of 2016 as compared to cash used in operating
activities of approximately $580 thousand in the first quarter of 2015. The change is primarily attributable to an increase of approximately
$14.8 million due to changes in the levels of operating assets and liabilities, a decrease of approximately $130 thousand in non-cash
operating activities, and an increase of approximately $1.3 million in cash provided by net income.

Our inventories and accounts receivable represent a significant amount of our assets, and our accounts payable represent a significant
amount of our operating liabilities. Inventory levels and accounts payable may fluctuate depending on the timing and amounts of
inventory purchases. A significant portion of our accounts receivable and accounts payable result from the use of subcontractors to
perform work on our contracts and from the purchase of materials to fulfill our contract obligations. Accordingly, our levels of accounts
receivable and accounts payable may fluctuate depending on the timing of services ordered and products sold, government funding delays,
the timing of billings received from subcontractors and materials vendors, and the timing of payments received for services. Such timing
differences have the potential to cause significant increases and decreases in our inventory, accounts receivable, and accounts payable
balances in short time periods, and accordingly, can cause significant increases or decreases in our cash provided by operations.
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Cash used in investing activities decreased approximately $191 million in the first quarter of 2016 as compared to the first quarter of 2015.
Cash used in investing activities for 2015 included approximately $189 million for the acquisition of our aviation businesses.

Cash used in financing activities was approximately $14 million in the first quarter of 2016 as compared to cash provided by financing
activities of approximately $193 million in the first quarter of 2015. This difference was primarily due to bank borrowing to finance the
acquisition of our aviation businesses in 2015.

We paid cash dividends totaling approximately $591 thousand or $0.11 per share in the first quarter of 2016. Pursuant to our bank loan
agreement, our payment of cash dividends is subject to annual rate restrictions. We have paid cash dividends each year since 1973 and
have increased our dividend each year since 2004.

Liquidity

Our internal sources of liquidity are primarily from operating activities, specifically from changes in our level of revenues and associated
inventory, accounts receivable, and accounts payable, and from profitability. Significant increases or decreases in revenues and inventory,
accounts receivable, and accounts payable can impact our liquidity. Our inventory and accounts payable levels can be affected by the
timing of large opportunistic inventory purchases. Our accounts receivable and accounts payable levels can be affected by changes in the
level of contract work we perform, by the timing of large materials purchases and subcontractor efforts used in our contracts, and by
delays in the award of contractual coverage and funding and payments. Government funding delays can cause delays in our ability to
invoice for revenues earned, presenting a potential negative impact on our days sales outstanding.

We also purchase property and equipment; invest in expansion, improvement, and maintenance of our operational and administrative
facilities; and invest in the acquisition of other companies. In 2015, our acquisitions required a significant use of cash.

Our external financing consists of a loan agreement with a bank group that provides for a term loan, revolving loans, and letters of credit.
The termination date of the loan agreement is January 2020. This agreement was implemented in January 2015 concurrent with the
acquisition of our aviation businesses.

The term loan requires quarterly installment payments. Our scheduled term loan payments after March 31, 2016 are $14.1 million in
2016, $21.6 million in 2017, $28.1 million in 2018, $30 million in 2019, and $36.2 million in 2020. The amount of our term loan
borrowings outstanding as of March 31, 2016 was $130 million.

The maximum amount of credit available to us under our loan agreement for revolving loans and letters of credit as of March 31, 2016
was $150 million. We may borrow and repay the revolving loan borrowings as our cash flows require or permit. We pay an unused
commitment fee and fees on letters of credit that are issued. We had approximately $92 million in revolving loan amounts outstanding and
no letters of credit outstanding as of March 31, 2016. The timing of certain payments made and collections received associated with our
inventory, subcontractor, and materials requirements and other operating expenses can cause fluctuations in our outstanding revolving
loan amounts. Delays in government funding of our work performed can also cause additional borrowing requirements.

Under our loan agreement we may elect to increase the maximum availability of the term loan facility, the revolving loan facility, or a
combination of both facilities up to an aggregate additional amount of $75 million.

We pay interest on the term loan borrowings and revolving loan borrowings at LIBOR plus a base margin or at a base rate (typically the
prime rate) plus a base margin. As of March 31, 2016, the LIBOR base margin was 2.5% and the base rate base margin was 1.25%. As of
April 1, 2016, the LIBOR base margin was lowered to 2.25% and the base rate base margin was lowered to 1.00%.The base margins
increase or decrease in steps as our Total Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio increases or decreases.

Our loan agreement requires us to have interest rate hedges on a portion of the outstanding term loan for the first three years of the
agreement. We executed compliant interest rate hedges in February 2015. After taking into account the impact of hedging instruments, as
of March 31, 2016, interest rates on portions of our outstanding debt ranged from 2.93% to 4.75%, and the effective interest rate on our
aggregate outstanding debt was 3.4%.
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Our loan agreement contains collateral requirements to secure our loan agreement obligations, restrictive covenants, a limit on annual
dividends, and other affirmative and negative covenants, conditions and limitations. Restrictive covenants include a maximum Total
Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio, which decreases over time, and a minimum Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. We were in compliance with the
financial covenants and other terms and conditions at March 31, 2016.

  Current Maximum Ratio  Actual Ratio
Total Funded Debt/EBITDA Ratio  3.25 to 1  2.92 to 1

  Minimum Ratio  Actual Ratio
Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio  1.20 to 1  1.56 to 1

We currently do not use public debt security financing.

Inflation and Pricing

Most of our contracts provide for estimates of future labor costs to be escalated for any option periods, while the non-labor costs in our
contracts are normally considered reimbursable at cost. Our property and equipment consists principally of land, buildings and
improvements, shop and warehouse equipment, computer systems equipment, and furniture and fixtures. We do not expect the overall
impact of inflation on replacement costs of our property and equipment to be material to our future results of operations or financial
condition.

Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rates

Our bank loan agreement provides available borrowing to us at variable interest rates. Accordingly, future interest rate changes could
potentially put us at risk for a material adverse impact on future earnings and cash flows. To mitigate the risks associated with future
interest rate movements we have employed interest rate hedges to fix the rate on a portion of our outstanding borrowings for various
periods. The resulting fixed rates on this portion of our debt are higher than the variable rates and have increased our net effective rate,
but have given us protection us against interest rate increases.

In February 2015, we entered into a LIBOR based interest rate swap on our term loan for a term of four years with a notional amount of
$100 million. The swap amount on our term loan decreases in increments on an annual basis. As of March 31, 2016, the amount of the
term loan swap was $75 million and with the term loan swap in place, we pay an effective interest rate of 1.25% plus our base margin.
Also in February 2015, we entered into a LIBOR based interest rate swap on our revolving loan for a term of three years with a notional
amount of $25 million. As of March 31, 2016, with the revolving loan swap in place, we pay an effective rate of 1.25% plus our base
margin.
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Item 3.    Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks

See "Disclosures About Market Risk" in Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

Item 4.    Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, based on management's evaluation, with the participation of our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")), our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by
us in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified
in the SEC's rules and forms, and that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange
Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons
performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

In connection with our Aviation Acquisition, certain areas of internal control over financial reporting changed. These areas are primarily
related to integrating corporate functions at VSE that previously existed at the Aviation Acquisition such as entity level control and
certain financial reporting controls. Certain control structure items remain in operation at the Aviation Acquisition, primarily related to
the financial reporting, information technology, inventory management, human resources, processing and billing of revenues, and
collection of those revenues. The control structure at the Aviation Acquisition have been modified to appropriately oversee and
incorporate these activities into the overall control structure.

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during our first quarter of fiscal 2016 that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II.   Other Information

Item 2.    Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

We did not purchase any of our equity securities during the period covered by this report.

VSE's loan agreement prohibits VSE from paying cash dividends, except that if there is no event of default, no act, event or condition that
would constitute an event of default with the giving of notice or the passage of time, or both, and no covenant breach would occur giving
effect to the payment of the dividend, VSE may pay cash dividends that do not exceed $6 million in the aggregate in any fiscal year.
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Item 6.    Exhibits

(a) Exhibits   
   
    Exhibit 31.1  Section 302 CEO Certification
    Exhibit 31.2  Section 302 CFO and PAO Certification
    Exhibit 32.1  Section 906 CEO Certification
    Exhibit 32.2  Section 906 CFO and PAO Certification
    Exhibit 10.3  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of December 6, 2013, by and between VSE

Corporation and Maurice A. Gauthier
    Exhibit 101.INS  XBRL Instance Document
    Exhibit 101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
    Exhibit 101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
    Exhibit 101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
    Exhibit 101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
    Exhibit 101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Document
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Exchange Act, VSE has omitted all other items contained in "Part II. Other Information" because such
other items are not applicable or are not required if the answer is negative or because the information required to be reported therein has
been previously reported.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

  VSE CORPORATION
Date: April 29, 2016 By: /s/ M. A. Gauthier
  M. A. Gauthier
  Chief Executive Officer,
  President and Chief Operating Officer

Date: April 29, 2016 By: /s/ T. R. Loftus
  T. R. Loftus
  Executive Vice President and
  Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Accounting Officer)
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VSE Corporation Form 10-Q March 31, 2016
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, M. A. Gauthier, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of VSE Corporation (the "Registrant");

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.            The Registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:

(a)            designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this  report is being prepared;

(b)            designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)            evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the  end of the period covered by this  report based on such evaluation;
and

(d)            disclosed in this  report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.            The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

(a)            all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation  of  internal  control over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)            any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2016 /s/ M. A. Gauthier
 M. A. Gauthier
 Chief Executive Officer, President
 and Chief Operating Officer



VSE Corporation Form 10-Q March 31, 2016
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, T. R. Loftus, certify that:

1.            I have reviewed this report on Form 10-Q of VSE Corporation (the "Registrant");

2.            Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3.            Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this
report;

4.            The Registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the Registrant and have:

(a)            designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b)            designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c)            evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the  end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

(d)            disclosed in this  report any change in the Registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant's internal control over
financial reporting; and

5.            The Registrant's other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the Registrant's auditors and the audit committee of Registrant's Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent
function):

(a)            all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation  of  internal  control over financial reporting which
are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the Registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)            any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2016 /s/ T. R. Loftus
 T. R. Loftus
 Executive Vice President and
 Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Accounting Officer)

 



VSE Corporation Form 10-Q March 31, 2016
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, the undersigned, as President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer of VSE Corporation (the "Company"), does
hereby certify that to the best of the undersigned's knowledge:

1) the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 (the "Report"), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Company's Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Date: April 29, 2016 /s/ M. A. Gauthier
 M. A. Gauthier
 Chief Executive Officer, President
 and Chief Operating Officer

 



VSE Corporation Form 10-Q March 31, 2016
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, the undersigned, as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of VSE Corporation (the "Company"), does hereby
certify that to the best of the undersigned's knowledge:

1) the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2016 (the "Report"), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2) the information contained in the Company's Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

Date: April 29, 2016 /s/ T. R. Loftus
 T. R. Loftus
 Executive Vice President and
 Chief Financial Officer
 (Principal Accounting Officer)



VSE Corporation Form 10-Q March 31, 2016
Exhibit 10.3

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into as of
December 6, 2013, by and between VSE Corporation, a Delaware corporation ("Employer" or "VSE"), and Maurice A. Gauthier
("Executive").  (Employer and Executive are sometimes referenced herein individually as a "Party" and collectively as the "Parties").

Recitals

A.            VSE employs Executive as VSE's chief executive officer, president and chief operating officer pursuant to an employment
agreement, dated as of April 22, 2008, by and between VSE and Executive (as amended by a Statement of Amendment No. One to the
Employment Agreement as of April 22, 2008, an Amendment Agreement dated as of April 19, 2010, and an Amendment Agreement No. 3
dated as of January 18, 2011, the "Original Agreement").

B.            VSE and Executive desire to amend and, in its entirety, restate the Original Agreement as set forth herein and, as a result
the Original Agreement is hereby superceded by this Agreement as of January 1, 2014.

C.            VSE wishes to continue to employ Executive as chief executive officer, president and chief operating officer of VSE and
Executive wishes to continue serving as chief executive officer, president and chief operating officer of VSE, upon the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration,
the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged, Employer and Executive, each intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

1.            Employment and Duties.

(a)            Employment and Term.  VSE hereby employs Executive as chief executive officer, president and chief operating officer of
VSE, and Executive hereby accepts such employment, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  The term of Executive's
employment hereunder shall commence on January 1, 2014 (the "Effective Date") and, unless terminated earlier pursuant to Section 6,
shall continue until March 31, 2017, except that if, as of March 31, 2017, neither Party has provided the other Party with at least 120 day's
prior written notice of its or his exercise of the right hereunder to cause the term hereof to expire as of March 31, 2017, such term shall
continue until March 31, 2018 (whatever is the actual term of Executive's employment hereunder is referred to herein as the "Term").

(b)            Offices.  During the Term, Executive shall serve as VSE's chief executive officer, president and chief operating officer. 
Executive will be assigned only duties of the type, nature and dignity normally assigned to someone in comparable positions at a
corporation of the size, stature and nature of Employer.  During the Term, Executive shall report to VSE's board of directors (the "Board")
in respect of all operational and administrative matters regarding VSE or any of its subsidiaries (collectively with VSE, "any Covered
Company").

2.            Compensation.

(a)            Salary.  During the Term, as compensation for services rendered by Executive hereunder, Employer shall pay to Executive
a minimum base salary at the rate of $670,000 per annum, payable in installments in accordance with Employer's policy governing salary
payments to senior officers, as such policy may be amended, from time to time, by the Board ("Base Salary").  Each December
commencing with December 2014, or on such other annual date as shall be determined by Employer, Executive's total compensation
hereunder will be subject to review by the Board's Compensation Committee and the Board.  Such review will include, among other
things, consideration of corporate and individual performance and industry benchmarks.

(b)            Performance Bonus.  Except as otherwise provided in Section 6, in addition to the Base Salary, Executive shall be eligible
for an annual performance bonus as determined by the Board under VSE's Performance Bonus Plan ("Performance Bonus").  Except as
may be otherwise provided herein, any Performance Bonus payable to Executive pursuant to this Section 2(b) shall be paid within 90 days
after the later (i) of the date on which the Board has determined to grant Executive a Performance Bonus in a specified amount or (ii) the
end of VSE's fiscal year to which such Performance Bonus relates.

(c)            Other Compensation Plans or Arrangements.  During the Term, Executive shall also be eligible to participate in all other
currently existing or subsequently implemented compensation or benefit plans or arrangements available generally to Employer's senior
officers, including VSE's Deferred Supplemental Compensation Plan and VSE's 2006 Restricted Stock Plan.

(d)            Tax Withholdings.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Employer shall be entitled to withhold from
Executive's compensation hereunder and pay over to the appropriate governmental agencies all payroll and similar taxes, including
income, social security, and unemployment compensation taxes, required by the federal, state and local governments with jurisdiction
over Employer.

3.            Benefits.  During the Term, Executive shall be entitled to such vacation benefits and comparable fringe benefits and perquisites as
may be provided generally to Employer's senior officers pursuant to policies established from time to time by Employer. These fringe
benefits and perquisites may include holidays, group health insurance, short-term and long-term disability insurance, life insurance and
retirement plan contributions.  Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation for 30 days during each year of the Term, subject to Employer's
applicable vacation policies.

4.            Expenses and Other Perquisites .  Employer shall reimburse Executive for all reasonable and proper business expenses that



Executive incurs during the Term in the performance of Executive's duties hereunder, in accordance with Employer's customary practices
for senior officers, and provided such business expenses are reasonably documented in accordance with Employer's related policies. 
Also, during the Term, Employer shall provide Executive with an office and suitable office fixtures, telephone and computer services, and
secretarial assistance of a nature appropriate to Executive's position and status hereunder.

5.            Exclusive Services, Confidential Information, Business Opportunities and Non-Solicitation.

(a)            Full Time and Exclusive Services.

(i) During the Term, Executive shall at all times devote his full-time attention, energies, efforts and skills to his
employment hereunder and, without the Board's prior consent, Executive shall not, directly or indirectly,
engage in any other business activity, whether or not for profit, gain or other pecuniary advantages, and
whether or not such pursuit presented a conflict of interest with the interest of any Covered Company,
provided that such prior consent of the Board shall not be required with respect to (1) business interests that
neither compete with any one or more Covered Companies nor interfere with Executive's duties and
obligations hereunder, and (2) Executive's part-time charitable, eleemosynary, philanthropic or professional
association activities that do not interfere with Executive's duties and obligation hereunder.

(ii) During the Term, Executive shall not, without the Board's prior consent, directly or indirectly, either as an
officer, director, Executive, agent, advisor, consultant, principal, stockholder, partner, owner or in any other
capacity, on Executive's own behalf or otherwise, in any way engage in, represent, be connected with or have
a financial interest in, any business that is, or to Executive's knowledge is about to become, engaged in the
business of providing engineering, port engineering, logistic, management, technical, information technology,
law enforcement, energy, supply chain or environmental related services or products to the United States
government or any department, agency, or instrumentality thereof or any state or local governmental agency
or to any person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, joint venture or other entity
(collectively a "Person") with which any Covered Company is currently doing or has previously done business
or any subsequent line of business developed by Executive or any Covered Company during the Term.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall be permitted to own passive investments in publicly held
companies provided that such investments do not exceed one percent of any such company's outstanding
equity.

(b)            Confidential Information.  During the Term and the period commencing on the date of any expiration or termination
thereof and ending on the second anniversary of such expiration or termination date ("Two-Year Post-Term Period"), Executive shall not
disclose or use, directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information (as defined below). For the purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential
Information" shall mean all information disclosed to Executive, or known by him as a consequence of or through his employment with
Employer, where such information is not generally known in the trade or industry or was regarded or treated as confidential by any
Covered Company, and where such information refers or relates in any manner whatsoever to the business activities, processes, services
or products of any Covered Company. Confidential Information shall include business and development plans (whether contemplated,
initiated or completed), information with respect to the development of technical and management services, business contacts, methods of
operation, results of analysis, business forecasts, financial data, costs, revenues, and similar information.  Upon any termination of the
Term, Executive shall immediately return to Employer all property of any Covered Company and all Confidential Information that is in
tangible form, and all copies thereof.

(c)            Business Opportunities.

(i) During the Term, Executive shall promptly disclose to Employer each business opportunity of a type that,
based upon its prospects and relationship to the existing businesses of any Covered Company, Employer or
any other Covered Company might reasonably consider pursuing.  Upon any expiration or termination of the
Term, Employer or such other Covered Company shall have the exclusive right to participate in or undertake
any such opportunity on its own behalf without any direct or indirect involvement of Executive.

(ii) During the Term, Executive shall refrain from engaging in any activity, practice or act that conflicts with, or
has the potential to conflict with, the interests of any Covered Company, and he shall avoid any acts or
omissions to act that are or would reasonably be expected to be disloyal to, or competitive with, any Covered
Company.

(d)            Non-Solicitation of Employees.  During the Term and the Two-Year Post Term Period, Executive shall not, except in the
course of his duties hereunder, directly or indirectly, induce or attempt to induce or otherwise counsel, advise, ask or encourage any
individual to leave the employ of any Covered Company, or solicit or offer employment to any individual who was employed by any
Covered Company at any time during the 365-day period preceding the solicitation or offer.

(e)            Covenant Not To Compete.

(i) If the Term expires on March 31, 2017 or March 31, 2018 pursuant to Section 1(a) or is terminated by
Employer for Cause (as defined below) or by Executive without Good Reason (as defined below), Executive
shall not, during the Two-Year Post Term Period, engage, directly or indirectly, in competition with any
Covered Company, or solicit, directly or indirectly, from any Person who purchased any then existing product
or service from any Covered Company during the Term, the purchase of any then existing product or service



in competition with then existing products or services of any Covered Company.

(ii) For purposes of this Agreement, Executive shall be deemed to engage in competition with a Covered
Company if Executive shall, directly or indirectly, either individually or as an equity holder, director, officer,
partner, consultant, owner, Executive, agent, or in any other capacity, consult with or otherwise assist any
Person engaged in providing engineering, port engineering, logistic, management, technical, information
technology, law enforcement, energy, supply chain or environmental related services or products to any
Person to whom any Covered Company, during the Term, has provided or was seeking to provide any such
services or products.

(f)            Executive Acknowledgment.  Executive hereby agrees and acknowledges that the restrictions imposed upon Executive by
this Section 5 are fair and reasonable considering the nature of the business of each Covered Company, and are reasonably required for
each Covered Company's protection.

(g)            Invalidity.  If a court of competent jurisdiction or an arbitrator shall declare any provision or restriction contained in this
Section 5 as unenforceable or void, the provisions of this Section 5 shall remain in full force and effect to the extent not so declared to be
unenforceable or void, and the court or arbitrator may modify the invalid provision to make it enforceable to the maximum extent
permitted by law.

(h)            Specific Performance.  Executive agrees that if Executive breaches any of the provisions of this Section 5, the remedies
available at law to Employer would be inadequate and in lieu thereof, or in addition thereto, Employer shall be entitled to appropriate
equitable remedies, including specific performance and injunctive relief. Executive agrees not to enter into any agreement, either written
or oral, which may conflict with this Agreement, and Executive authorizes Employer to make known the terms of Sections 5 and 6 to any
Person, including future or prospective employers of Executive.

6.            Termination of Term

(a)            By Employer.

(i) Termination for Cause.

Employer may terminate the Term for Cause at any time by notice to Executive.  For purposes of this
Agreement, the term "Cause" shall mean any one or more of the following:  (1) conduct by Executive that is
materially illegal or fraudulent or contrary to Employer's policy; (2) the breach by Executive of this Agreement,
provided that Executive must first be given notice by the chairman of the Board (the "Chairman") or Board of
the alleged breach, and if such breach can reasonably be expected to be cured within 30 days, 30 days to cure
said alleged breach; (3) Executive's use of illegal drugs or abuse of alcohol or authorized drugs that impairs
Executive's ability to perform his duties hereunder, provided that Executive must be given notice by the Board
of such impairment and 60 days to cure the impairment; and (4) Executive's knowing and willful neglect of
duties or negligence in the performance of duties hereunder that materially affects the business of any Covered
Company, provided that Executive must first be given notice by the Chairman or Board of such alleged neglect
or negligence and 30 days to cure said alleged neglect or negligence.  If a termination occurs pursuant to clause
(1) above, the date on which the Term is terminated (the "Termination Date") shall be the date Executive
receives notice of termination and, if a termination occurs pursuant to clauses (2), (3) or (4) above, the
Termination Date shall be the date on which, if applicable, the specified cure period expires.  In any event, as of
the Termination Date (in the absence of curing the alleged breach within the applicable cure period), Executive
shall be relieved of all duties hereunder and Executive shall not be entitled to the accrual or provision of any
compensation or benefit hereunder after the Termination Date, but Executive shall be entitled to the provision of
all compensation and other benefits that shall have accrued hereunder as of the Termination Date, including
Base Salary, Performance Bonus, paid leave benefits and reimbursement of incurred business expenses.

(ii) Termination Without Cause.

(1) Employer may, in its sole discretion, without Cause, terminate the Term at any time by providing
Employee with five days' prior notice thereof.

(2) If Employer terminates the Term without Cause pursuant to this Section 6 (a)(ii)(1) and the
Termination Date is not during a Change of Control Period (as defined below), Employer shall pay
Executive on or prior to the Termination Date a lump sum equal (A) to two times Executive's Base
Salary in effect as of the Termination Date and (B) the Annualized Performance Bonus.  In the event
of any such termination of the Term by Employer without Cause pursuant to Section 6(a)(ii)(1),
Executive shall not be entitled to the accrual or provision of any other compensation or benefit
hereunder after the Termination Date other than (A) the medical and hospitalization benefits for the
first 18 months after the Termination Date; (B) the provision of all compensation and other benefits
that shall have accrued hereunder as of the Termination Date, including Base Salary, Performance
Bonus, paid leave benefits, and reimbursements of incurred expenses; (C) all restricted stock,
restricted stock units or similar rights to acquire capital stock granted by VSE to Executive shall
automatically become vested; and (D) all unvested rights of Executive under VSE's Deferred



Supplemental Compensation Plan shall automatically become vested.

(3) If Employer terminates the Term without Cause pursuant to Section 6(a)(ii)(1) during a Change of
Control Period, Executive shall be entitled to (A) payment on or prior to the Termination Date of a
lump sum severance compensation payment equal to the lesser of (x) three times Executive's Base
Salary in effect as of the Termination Date, or (y) such amount as would not trigger the application of
Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Section 280G Limitation; (B)
Annualized Performance Bonus; (C) continued medical and hospitalization benefits for the first 18
months after the Termination Date and payment of all compensation and other benefits that shall
have accrued hereunder as of the Termination Date, including Base Salary, Performance Bonus, paid
leave benefits, and reimbursement of incurred expenses; (D) the automatic vesting of all restricted
stock, restricted stock units or similar rights to acquire capital stock of VSE granted by VSE to
Executive; and (E) the automatic vesting of all unvested rights of Executive under VSE's Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan; provided that Executive shall not be entitled, after the
Termination Date, to the accrual or provision of any other compensation payable hereunder.  For
purposes of this Agreement, the 280G Limitation shall be applied after first giving due effect to, inter
alia, the rights and benefits provided to Executive pursuant to clauses (B), (C), (D) and (E) of the
immediately preceding sentence.

(4) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, any expiration of the Term as of March 31, 2017 or,
as the case may be, March 31, 2018, pursuant to Section 1 shall not be considered a termination by
Employer without Cause for the purposes of this Agreement, including this Section 6(a)(ii).

(b)            Death or Disability.  The Term shall be terminated immediately and automatically upon Executive's death or "Disability." 
The term "Disability" shall mean Executive's inability to perform all of the essential functions of his position hereunder for an aggregate
of 90 work days during any period of 365 consecutive days by reason of illness, accident or any other physical or mental incapacity, as
may be permitted by applicable law. Executive's capability to continue performance of Executive's duties hereunder shall be determined
by a panel composed of two independent medical doctors appointed by VSE and one appointed by Executive or designated representative.
If the panel is unable to reach a decision, the matter will be referred to arbitration in accordance with Section 7. In the event of Executive's
death or Disability, Executive (or his surviving spouse or estate) will be paid (i) his Base Salary then in effect for 365 days following the
date of death or Disability and (ii) a lump sum equal to the Annualized Performance Bonus for the year of termination.  Such 365 days of
Base Salary shall be payable in installments in accordance with Employer's policy governing salary payment to senior officers generally;
however, the completion of the obligation to pay 365 days of Base Salary shall be paid by no later than March 15 of the calendar year
following the calendar year in which Executive dies or incurs a Disability.

(c)            By Executive.

(i) Executive may, in his sole discretion, without Cause, terminate the Term at any time upon 60 days' notice to
the Chairman. If Executive exercises such termination right, Employer may, at its option, at any time after
receiving such notice from Executive, relieve Executive of all duties and terminate the Term at any time prior
to the expiration of said notice period, and such termination shall not constitute a termination without Cause
pursuant to this Agreement, including Section 6(a)(ii). If the Term is terminated by Executive or Employer
pursuant to this Section 6(c)(i), Executive shall not be entitled to any further Base Salary or the accrual or
provision of any compensation or benefits hereunder after the Termination Date, except standard medical and
hospitalization benefits in accordance with Employer's policy.

(ii) During a Change of Control Period, Executive may terminate the Term for Good Reason upon 30 days' notice
to Employer. If Executive exercises such termination right, Employer may, at its option, at any time after
receiving such notice from Executive, relieve Executive of all duties hereunder and terminate the Term at any
time prior to the expiration of said notice period, and such termination shall not constitute a termination
without Cause pursuant to this Agreement, including Section 6(a)(ii).  If the Term is terminated by Executive
or Employer pursuant to this Section 6 (c)(ii), Executive shall be entitled to (1) payment on or prior to the
Termination Date of a lump sum severance compensation payment equal to (A) the lesser of (x) three times
Executive's Base Salary in effect as of the Termination Date, or (y) the 280G Limitation; (2) payment on or
prior to the Termination Date of the Annualized Performance Bonus; (3) continued medical and
hospitalization benefits for the first 18 months after the Termination Date and payment of all compensation
and other benefits that shall have accrued hereunder as of the Termination Date, including Base Salary,
Performance Bonus, paid leave benefits and reimbursement of incurred expenses; (4) the automatic vesting of
all restricted stock, restricted stock units or similar rights to acquire capital stock of VSE granted by VSE to
Executive; and (5) the automatic vesting of all unvested rights of Executive under VSE's Deferred
Supplemental Compensation Plan; provided that Executive shall not be entitled, after the Termination Date, to
the accrual or provision of any other compensation payable hereunder.  For purposes of this Agreement, the
280G Limitation shall be applied after first giving due effect to, inter alia, the rights and benefits provided to
Executive pursuant to clauses (2), (3), (4) and (5) of the immediately preceding sentence.

(d)            Expiration of the Term Pursuant to Section 1.  Upon any expiration of the Term, as of March 31, 2017 or, as the case may
be, March 31, 2018, pursuant to Section 1(a), all unvested restricted stock, restricted stock units or similar rights to acquire capital stock of
VSE granted by VSE to Executive shall automatically vest.



(e)            Certain Defined Terms.  For purposes of this Section 6:

(i) "Affiliate" of a Person shall mean a Person that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with the Person specified.

(ii) "Annualized Performance Bonus" means an annual bonus amount for the year in which any Termination Date
occurs, based on an estimate of VSE's performance for the period before the Termination Date, as determined
by the Board's Compensation Committee, and the terms and conditions of the VSE's annual bonus or
incentive plan, and prorated to reflect the number of days out of 365 during which Executive was employed
by VSE during the year of the Termination Date, including the Termination Date; provided that the estimate
of VSE's performance for the period before the Termination Date shall be reconciled with VSE's actual
performance for the entire year in which the Termination Date occurs and the Board's Compensation
Committee shall make any necessary adjustment in the amount payable.  In the event of an underpayment or
overpayment of the Annualized Performance Bonus based on such reconciliation, VSE shall promptly pay to
Executive (or Executive's legal representatives in the event of his death) the amount of any underpayment or,
as the case may be, Executive (or Executive's legal representatives in the event of his death) shall promptly
pay to the Company the amount of any overpayment.

(iii) "Change of Control" shall be deemed to have occurred upon the happening of any of the following events:

(1) any "person," including a "group," as such terms are defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules promulgated thereunder (collectively the
"Exchange Act"), other than a trustee or other fiduciary holding voting securities of VSE ("Voting
Securities") under any VSE-sponsored benefit plan, becomes the beneficial owner, as defined under
the Exchange Act, directly or indirectly, whether by purchase or acquisition or agreement to act in
concert or otherwise, of 45% or more of the outstanding Voting Securities;

(2) a cash tender or exchange offer is completed for such amount of Voting Securities that, together with
the Voting Securities then beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, by the offeror (and affiliates
thereof) constitutes 45% or more of the outstanding Voting Securities;

(3) except in the case of a merger or consolidation in which (x) VSE is the surviving corporation and (y)
the holders of Voting Securities immediately prior to such merger or consolidation beneficially own,
directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the outstanding Voting Securities immediately after such
merger or consolidation (there being excluded from the number of Voting Securities held by such
holders, but not from the outstanding Voting Securities, any Voting Securities received by Affiliates
of the other constituent corporation(s) in the merger or consolidation in exchange for stock of such
other corporation), VSE's stockholders approve an agreement to merge, consolidate, liquidate or sell
all or substantially all of VSE's assets; or

(4) a majority of VSE's directors are elected to the Board without having previously been nominated and
approved by the members of the Board incumbent on the day immediately preceding such election.

(iv) "Change of Control Period" means the period beginning on the 90 th day preceding any Change of Control and
ending on the earlier of the first anniversary of the date on which the Change of Control occurred and the
date, if any, the Term expires pursuant to Section 1(a).

(v) "Good Reason" shall mean that any one or more of the following events has occurred:

(1) a material diminishment in the nature of Executive's authorities, duties, responsibilities or status
(including offices and titles) from those in effect immediately prior to the Effective Date;

(2) the relocation of Executive's place of employment to a location in excess of 75 miles from the place
of Executive's employment immediately prior to the Effective Date, except for required travel on
Employer's business to an extent substantially equivalent to Executive's business travel obligations
immediately prior to the Effective Date; or

(3) Employer's material breach of any obligation hereunder, but in each case only if Executive has
provided written notice to Employer within 90 days after the condition providing the basis for such
Good Reason first exists and if such Good Reason has not been corrected or cured by Employer (if
curable) within 30 days after Employer has received written notice from Executive of Executive's
intent to terminate Employee's employment for Good Reason and specifying in detail the basis for



such termination.

(f)            Parachute Payments.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the total value of all of the payments and other
benefits hereunder that are subject to Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), would otherwise
cause any of such payments and other benefits to constitute "parachute payments" under Code Section 280G(b)(2), Employer shall reduce
the amount of such payments and other benefits, but only to the extent necessary to enable the remaining  payments and other benefits to
avoid characterization as "parachute payments."  The selection of the particular payments and other benefits to eliminate to achieve the
objective described in the previous sentence will be made in Employer's sole discretion.

(g)            No Duty to Mitigate.  If Executive is entitled to the compensation and other benefits provided under Sections 6(a)(ii) or
6(c)(ii), Executive shall have no obligation to seek employment to mitigate damages hereunder.

(h)            No Reduction in Executive's Benefits Upon Change in Control.  Employer shall not reduce Executive's Base Salary or
materially reduce Executive's incentive benefits from those in effect immediately prior to a Change in Control.

7.            Arbitration.  Whenever a dispute arises between the Parties concerning this Agreement or any of the obligations hereunder, or
Executive's employment with VSE generally, Employer and Executive shall use their best efforts to resolve the dispute by mutual
agreement. If any dispute cannot be resolved by Employer and Executive, such dispute shall be submitted to arbitration to the exclusion of
all other avenues of relief and adjudicated pursuant to the American Arbitration Association's Rules for Employment Dispute Resolution
then in effect. The decision of the arbitrator must be in writing and shall be final and binding on the Parties, and judgment may be entered
on the arbitrator's award in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The arbitrator's authority in granting relief to Executive shall be limited
to an award of compensation, severance, benefits and unreimbursed expenses as described in Sections 3, 4, 5 and 6 and to the release of
Executive from the provisions of Section 6, and the arbitrator shall have no authority to award other types of damages or relief to
Executive, including consequential or punitive damages. The arbitrator shall also have no authority to award consequential or punitive
damages to Employer for breaches of this Agreement by Executive.  The expenses of the arbitration shall be borne by the losing Party to
the arbitration and the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover from the losing Party all of its or his own costs and attorneys' fees with
respect to the arbitration.  Nothing in this Section 7 shall be construed to derogate from Employer's rights to seek legal and equitable relief
in a court of competent jurisdiction as contemplated by Section 5(h).

8.            Non-Waiver.  A Party's failure at any time to require the performance by the other Party of any of the terms, provisions, covenants
or conditions hereof shall in no way affect the first Party's right thereafter to enforce the same, nor shall the waiver by either Party of the
breach of any term, provision, covenant or condition hereof be taken or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach.

9.            Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement conflicts with the law under which this Agreement is to be construed, or if any such
provision is held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or any arbitrator, such provision shall be deleted from this
Agreement and the Agreement shall be construed to give full effect to the remaining provision thereof.

10.            Survivability.  Unless otherwise provided herein, upon expiration or termination of the Term, the provisions of Sections 5(b), (d),
(e), (f), (g) and (h) shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect.

11.            Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed, and governed according to the laws of the Commonwealth of
Virginia, without regard to the conflict of law provisions thereof, and all claims relating to or arising out of this Agreement, or the breach
or asserted breach thereof, whether sounding in contract, tort or otherwise, shall likewise be interpreted, construed and governed
according to the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without regard to the conflict of law provisions thereof.

12.            Construction of this Agreement and Certain Terms and Phrases.

(a)            The section headings contained in this Agreement are inserted for purposes of convenience of reference only and shall not
affect the meaning or interpretation hereof.

(b)            Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise requires, (i) words of any gender include each other gender; (ii) words
using the singular or plural number also include the plural or singular number, respectively; (iii) the terms "hereof," "herein,"
"hereunder," "hereby" and derivative or similar words refer to this entire Agreement; and (iv) the term "Section" refers to the specified
Section of this Agreement.

(c)            The word "including" is not exclusive; if exclusion is intended, the word "comprising" is used instead.

(d)            The word "or" shall be construed to mean "and/or" unless the context clearly prohibits that construction.

(e)            Employer and Executive have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement. If an ambiguity or
question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as if drafted jointly by Employer and Executive and no
presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring either Party by virtue of the authorship of any of the provisions of this
Agreement.

13.            Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains and represents the entire agreement of Employer and Executive and supersedes all
prior agreements (including, as of January 1, 2014, the Original Agreement, which is terminated and null and void), representations or
understandings, oral or written, express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may not be modified or
amended in any way unless in writing signed by each of Employer and Executive. No representation, promise or inducement has been
made by either Employer or Executive that is not embodied in this Agreement, and neither Employer nor Executive shall be bound by or
liable for any alleged representation, promise or inducement not specifically set forth herein.

14.            Assignability.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations of Employer or Executive hereunder may be assigned by



Employer or Executive without the other Party's prior consent. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of Employer, Executive, Employer's successors and assigns and Executive's estate herein, beneficiaries and personal
representative.

15.            Notices.  All notices, approvals, consents and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall
be deemed properly given if delivered personally or sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or sent
by telegram, telex, telecopy or similar form of telecommunication, and shall be deemed to have been given when received. Any such
notice or communication shall be addressed: (a) if to Employer, to Chairman, VSE Corporation, 6348 Walker Lane, Alexandria, VA
22310; or (b) if to Executive, to the last known home address on file with Employer, or to such other address as Employer or Executive
shall have furnished to the other in writing.

16.            Code Section 409A.

(a)            Code Section 409A. To the extent that such requirements are applicable, this Agreement is intended to comply with the
requirements of Code Section 409A and shall be interpreted and administered in accordance with that intent.  If any provision of this
Agreement would otherwise conflict with or frustrate this intent, that provision shall be interpreted and deemed amended so as to avoid
the conflict.  The nature of any such amendment shall be determined by the Board.  Notwithstanding the above, if Executive qualifies as a
'specified employee,' as defined in Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-1(i), incurs a "separation from service," as defined in Treas. Reg. Section
1.409A-1(h), for any reason other than death and becomes entitled to a payment or distribution under the Agreement, then to the extent
required by Code Section 409A, no payment or distribution otherwise payable to Executive during the first six months after the date of
such separation from service, shall be paid to Executive until the date that is one day after the date which is six months after the date of
such separation from service (or, if earlier, the date of Executive's death).

(b)            Acceleration of Benefits.  Notwithstanding the above, the payment of any benefits under this Agreement that is subject to
Code Section 409A may not be accelerated except in compliance with the provisions of Treas. Reg. Section 1.409A-3(j)(4)(ix) or such
other events and conditions that may be permitted in generally applicable guidelines published in the Internal Revenue Bulletin.  The
Board reserves any discretion to distribute benefits in accordance with the requirements of such regulations or such guidelines

17.            Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or two counterparts, all of which together shall constitute one and the
same Agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Employer and Executive have duly executed this Agreement, to be effective and in full force and
effect as of the Effective Date.

 VSE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation  
   
   
    
 By:/s/ Clifford M. Kendall  
  Clifford M. Kendall,  
  Chairman of the Board of Directors  

  /s/ Maurice A. Gauthier  
  Maurice A. Gauthier  


